
Town of Altavista, Virginia
Meeting Agenda Planning Commission

Planning Commission

Tuesday, September 5, 2023
5:00 PM - 510 7th Street

Altavista, VA 24517

 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - AMERICAN FLAG

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

4.1 Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2023

5. PUBLIC EXPRESSION

6. PUBLIC HEARING(S)

6.1 Public Hearing: Consideration of Re-zoning of Properties at Amherst Avenue and
Novelty Street, Altavista

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

7.1 Student Commissioner Discussion

8. NEW BUSINESS

9. MATTERS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION

10. MATTERS FROM STAFF

11. ADJOURNMENT

 

 

 

 

 

 attachment. PC Meeting Minutes for 6.05.23

 

 

 attachment. Staff Report to PC 9.05.23

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE TOWN OF ALTAVISTA IS COMMITTED TO FULL COMPLIANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH
DISABILITIES ACT STANDARDS. TRANSLATION SERVICES, ASSISTANCE OR ACCOMODATION
REQUESTS FROM PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES ARE TO BE REQUESTED NOT LESS THAN 3 WORKING
DAYS BEFORE THE DAY OF THE EVENT. PLEASE CALL (434) 369-5001 FOR ASSISTANCE.

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/9a28386e5410e3ce85f3ea78d404c0530.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2120661/PC_Meeting_Minutes_for_6.05.23.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/33b63326b3d1dc882ad5f07feb30ff540.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2135923/PC-Agenda-Packet_05SEPT23_v.final.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/altavistava/858d54b37b8ef7f756592607ec3e7ae20.pdf


TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
PLANNING COMMISSION

September 5, 2023
AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 4.1
Approval of Minutes
Title: Approval of Minutes - June 5, 2023
Staff Resource: Crystal Hailey, Asst. Town Clerk
 

Action(s):

The Commission may approve the minutes as presented; or inform Staff of changes needed to the
document.

Explanation:

The Planning Commission is required to review and vote to approve or amend the minutes from their
previous meeting.

Background:

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

attachment. PC Meeting Minutes for 6.05.23

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2120661/PC_Meeting_Minutes_for_6.05.23.pdf


The Altavista Planning Commission held a regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, June 5th, 2023, 

at 5pm, in the Council Chambers of Town Hall, located at 510 7th Street, Altavista, VA. 

  

Members present: John Jordan, Chairman  

   Marie Mitchell, Vice Chair 

   Reggie Bennett, Vice Mayor  

   Meghan Bolling  

   Ashby Robinson, Jr. 

   Micah Andrews, Senior Student Commissioner – joined the meeting by phone 

   Rayna Steele, Junior Student Commissioner 

 

Staff present:  Sharon D. Williams, AICP, Community Development Director  

   J. Johnson Eller Jr., Town Attorney 

   Crystal Hailey, Assistant Town Clerk  

 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

Chairman John Jordan called the Altavista Planning Commission Meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  

He informed everyone that Commissioner Andrews was joining the meeting by phone conference. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE & INVOCATION  

Chairman Jordan delivered an Invocation for the meeting and afterwards, the Planning 

Commission and Staff recited the Pledge of Allegiance 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Chairman Jordan confirmed there were no amendments needed to the agenda. 

 

Upon a motion made by Vice Chair Marie Mitchell, and seconded by Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett, 

the Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve the June 5, 2023, meeting agenda as presented.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Chairman Jordan stated that he did not see any corrections needed to the April 3, 2023, minutes. 

 

A motion was made by Vice Chair Mitchell, and seconded by Vice Mayor Bennett, approving the 

minutes for the Altavista Planning Commission’s April 2023  meeting as presented, by a 7-0 vote.  

 

PUBLIC EXPRESSION - There were no citizen comments. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS - There were no public hearings conducted on this date. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Short-term Rental Discussion 

Presented by Sharon D. Williams, Community Development Director, and Planning Commission 

Secretary. This matter was first introduced to the Planning Commission at their April 2023 

meeting, when Ms. Williams informed the Commission that in 2022, an amendment to the Code 

of Virginia required localities to accept all transient lodging tax payments for short-term rentals, 

3



even if they did not know exactly where or which property it came from, as some rentals go through 

second-party companies, such as AIR B&B and VRBO.  Ms. Williams shared the Virginia Code’s 

definition of Short-term Rental (STR), and Staff’s recommendation for Altavista’s Zoning 

Ordinance: a room or group of rooms, all within a single dwelling unit, permitted in the district in 

which such dwelling use is located, used or intended for use as lodging for less than thirty (30) 

consecutive nights by the traveling public and similar transient guests, in return for compensation 

on a daily basis. The term “short-term rental” is intended to be distinguished from hotels, motels, 

tourist homes and lodging houses, shelters, group homes, and similar forms of housing. She offered 

the Commission three options for consideration. 

o Option #1:  Amend the Town’s Zoning Ordinance to allow short-term rentals as a By Right 

Use, in the R1-low density residential, R2-medium density residential, C1-local commercial, 

C2-general commercial, and DRO (downtown revitalization overlay district) zoning districts. 

o Option #2:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow short-term rentals, with a Special Use 

Permit (SUP), in the Town’s R-1, R-2, C-1, C-2, and DRO Zoning Districts. 

o Option #3:  Amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow short-term rental in the R-1 and R-2 Zoning 

Districts with a Special Use Permit; and as a By Right use in the DRO, C-1, and C-2 Zoning 

Districts. 

 

Ms. Williams stated, if Option #1 was approved, the Town would need a registration policy. She 

shared some of Staff’s recommended rules and regulations that could be tailored to Altavista’s 

policy, which included having a safety plan and point-of-contact information. Ms. Williams asked 

the Commission if they believed there should be a limit on the number of nights per calendar year 

that a room/unit could be rented. 

 

Vice Chair Marie Mitchell shared that she was ok with the C-1 and C-2 districts being allowed to 

have short-term rental uses; but believed the R-1 and R-2 districts should need a Special Use Permit 

 

Ms. Williams reminded the Commission that there were residential homes currently in commercial 

districts, and to take into consideration the current Zoning Ordinance, with the possibility of future 

zoning changes for that issue, especially on 3rd, 4th, and 5th Streets in Altavista. 

 

Chairman John Jordan asked if there was any reason why a zoning district should be allowed to 

have short-term rentals “By Right”. He shared his favor with all districts needing a SUP. 

 

Ms. Williams stated the use was very new to Altavista and its community. She said if the Town 

created a policy that required a Special Use Permit for short-term rental in all Town districts, the 

policy could be reviewed and amended at any time in the future, if Council so desired. 

 

Vice Mayor Reggie Bennett shared his favor with STRs being required to obtain a SUP, instead 

of the Town’s policy having broad rules that my work for one but not another. 

 

Commissioner Robinson stated, during his Planning Commissioner’s class, they discussed this 

matter, and he was also in favor of Altavista’s STR policy having a Special Use Permit requirement 

 

4



Ms. Williams stated, along with a SUP, that Staff also recommended the Town’s STR policy 

include the requirement to register the business with the Town; which should include a life-safety 

inspection with a county building official, and a safety plan for its occupants. 

 

Vice Mayor Bennett questioned if a SUP would need amending if the use changed, such as a two-

bedroom house being remodeled into a three-bedroom house. 

 

Ms. Williams confirmed that, in such a case as that, Staff was unable to overrule Town Council’s 

authority, and the amendment to the SUP would need to go before Council for secondary approval. 

Chairman Jordan asked if Altavista was responsible for conducting periodic inspections of STR 

properties registered in the Town. 

 

Ms. Williams stated the STRs would be treated like any other use that required a Special Use 

Permit; if found not in compliance with their permit, Staff would initiate the process to request 

compliance, and if not complied with, Staff would recommend to Council to revoke the SUP. 

 

Vice Chair Mitchell referenced Staff’s recommended rules and regulations for STRs in Altavista, 

with the minimum age of eighteen to rent from an STR business. She said that an individual had 

to be twenty-five years of age to rent a vehicle at most car-rental businesses. 

 

Student Commissioner Micah Andrews suggested reviewing the rules of AIR B&B, to compare 

their requirements and restrictions with those proposed for Altavista, to consider if any of their 

rules would also be viable for the Town. 

 

There was a unanimous consensus of the Planning Commission to recommend Option #2 to Town 

Council: to amend Town Code to require a Special Use Permit in all circumstances for approval 

to operate a short-term rental business in the Town of Altavista; and to recommend that Town 

Council direct Staff to create a policy, with Altavista’s STR rules and regulations, that would 

require STRs to register their business with the Town before a SUP would be approved. 

 

Ms. Williams referenced the STR Rules & Regulations that she proposed for consideration. She 

said the document was a starting place for a registration policy on this matter, but there were many 

items that still needed to be discussed, such as the number of occupants, parking and the number 

of vehicles to be allowed, safety plans, etc. Ms. Williams said the Planning Commission and Town 

Council could add or delete items as they deemed viable for Altavista’s policy. She stated that, 

when complete, a public hearing would be scheduled for the Commission and Town Council to 

approve the code amendment and STR policy. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Civic, Institutional, and Community Uses 

Ms. Williams referenced Altavista’s Zoning Map and shared a photo of the map as a visual 

reference for the Commission during this discussion. She pointed out that civic institutions, such 

as Town Hall, the US Post Office, and the YMCA, were not specifically designated on the Zoning 

Map, but showed as C2-general commercial.  She asked the Commission for their input on whether 

they should remain as they were currently categorized, or if the Town should consider creating a 

new zoning district for such uses. Ms. Williams shared Staff’s proposal for a new zoning district, 

5



“Community, Cultural, and Educational (CCE)”, that would cover civic and community uses such 

as the three aforementioned facilities, as well as schools, hospitals, child care, libraries, museums, 

adult care, service organizations, etc.  Ms. Williams stated, by creating the new district, and 

distinguishing it on the Town’s zoning map in grey (the accepted civic color by all localities), 

would help Staff, the Planning Commission, and land developers to easily identify those areas. 

 

The Planning Commission unanimously agreed in favor of Staff moving forward with the process 

of creating a new zoning district for civic, community, and institutional uses; to be clarified in grey 

on the Town’s Zoning Map. 

 

Chairman Jordan asked if Staff was still planning to propose a “transitional zoning district” as 

previously mentioned when the Commission discussed a property on Lynch Mill Road. 

 

Ms. Williams answered yes, however, the proposal was currently just a draft, and she intended to 

bring the matter to the Commission when the draft was complete and ready for consideration. 

 

MATTERS FROM STAFF 

Ms. Williams shared a few recent updates with the Planning Commission. 

▪ Lynch Road/West Road:  Complaint of airstrip usage 

This item will be introduced to the Commission at an upcoming meeting, to consider whether 

airstrips should be allowed in the Town of Altavista. 

▪ Rezoning Amherst Avenue and Novelty Street 

This item will be introduced to the Commission sometime later in the year, to consider a 

proposal for rezoning (2) blocks of housing in this area of town. 

▪ Moseley Heights:  Neighborhood Block Grant 

The Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) approved Phase II of this 

project, with $60,000 to continue the community study for this neighborhood’s needs. 

▪ Citizens Academy 

Staff proposed this program to help educate citizens of land use types and land use issues, and 

the governmental processes used to address those issues. 

▪ $200,000 Grant Application 

Staff would be submitting an application that evening for a Home-Repair Grant, to be used for 

revitalization of neighborhoods like Moseley Heights, and 3rd, 4th, and 5th Streets. 

 

MATTERS FROM THE COMMISSION 

Chairman Jordan recommended, with the Planning Commission Secretary, Ms. Williams, being 

out on medical leave during June and July, that the Commission not meet again until August. 

 

There was a consensus of the Planning Commission that concurred with Chairman Jordan.  

 

Student Commissioner Micah Andrews informed the Commission that evening was the last 

meeting that she would be attending; stating that she was accepted into a summer program and 

thereafter began college in mid-August. 

 

Ms. Williams said that she and Vice Chair Mitchell would contact the new Altavista Combined 

School principal and ask for a continued partnership with Altavista’s Planning Commission, and 

6



to recommend another junior student to replace Rayna Steele, which would be moving into the 

Senior Student Commissioner position as of August 2023, with Ms. Andrews’ departure. 

 

Student Commissioner Andrews suggested that, moving forward, a Senior Student 

Commissioner’s last meeting be in June, to coincide with them graduating. 

 

Chairman Jordan concurred, as did all other Commissioners. Chairman Jordan, also stated, if there 

was a major project the Commission was working on at the same time a Senior Student 

Commissioner was due to graduate, that he would welcome them to the July meeting to help 

complete the project. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Jordan asked if there were any other concerns or items to discuss that evening, of which 

there were none. 

 

With no further business to discuss, Chairman Jordan adjourned the meeting at 5:55 p.m. 

 

 

 

_________________________     _____________________________  

John Jordan        Sharon D. Williams, AICP 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

7



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
PLANNING COMMISSION

September 5, 2023
AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 6.1
Public Hearing(s)
Title: Public Hearing: Consideration of Re-zoning of Properties at Amherst Avenue and Novelty
Street, Altavista
Staff Resource: Town Manager Gary Shanaberger, and Assistant Town Manager Matt Perkins
 

Action(s):

Conduct Public Hearing, discuss, and approve recommendation for re-zoning to Altavista Town
Council.

Explanation:

The Altavista Planning Commission is holding a Public Hearing to consider an Application for Re-
zoning, Case Number RZ-23-02, submitted by Acres of Virginia, Inc on behalf of their client JCJ
Holdings, LLC, owner.

 
 

Background:

REZONING CASE RZ-23-02:  A request of JCJ Holdings, LLC, owner, to re-zone 1.865 acres, from
M-Industrial to R2-Medium Density Residential.  Subject properties are located on Novelty Street and
Amherst Avenue and are identified as Parcel IDs 83A-11-36-1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15.
 
Reference Staff Report to Planning Commission for more full and complete background information.

Funding Source(s):

N/A

Attachments:  (click item to open)

attachment. Staff Report to PC 9.05.23

8

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2135923/PC-Agenda-Packet_05SEPT23_v.final.pdf


Staff Report to Planning Commission 
Rezoning #RZ-23-02 

Public Hearing September 05, 2023 
 
 
Request: 
 
The request is from Acres of Virginia, Inc, on behalf of JCJ Holdings, LLC, contract 
purchaser, to fourteen (14) lots from Industrial (M) to Medium Density Residential (R-2). 
The subject properties are located along Amherst Avenue and Novelty Street and are 
identified as Parcel IDs 83A-11-36-1, -2, -3, -4, -5, -6, -8, -9, -10, -11, -12, -13, -14, -15. 
 
Background:  
 
Applicant:  Acres of Virginia, Inc 
Owner:    JCJ Holdings, LLC 

Requested Action: Rezone from M (Industrial) to R-2 (Multi-Family Residential)  

with proffers dated April 23, 2020 

Property Address:   Amherst Ave and Novelty Street 

Status of Property:  Two (2) Vacant Single-family and Twelve (12) Vacant Duplexes 

Size:    Fourteen (14) lots totaling 1.865 acres  

 
Adjoining Zoning and Land Use: 
 

North: Industrial (M) / General Commercial (C-2) - single-family dwelling, manufacturing 
operations, light commercial (banks, restaurants, convenience stores) 

South: Industrial (M) – industrial building complex - vacant 

East: Industrial (M) – manufacturing operations 

West: General Commercial (C-2) – single-family residential dwellings and light 
commercial (auto repair, restaurants, funeral home, warehouse)  

 
 Analysis: 
 
The applicant/owners desire to renovate all fourteen (14) single-family detached and 
duplex dwellings. The properties are zoned Industrial (M), which does not permit the 
proposed residential use. The applicant/owners are requesting to rezone the property to 
(Medium-Density Residential) R-2, which allows the proposed use. 
 
The lots currently have blighted and vacant structures.  
 
The immediate surrounding properties are a mix of residential and industrial uses, as well 
as a few vacant parcels. BGF Industries, Inc. is adjacent, north of Amherst St and across 
from parcels 1-6. There is one occupied single-family, investor-owned property on Novelty 
St, the remaining parcels, 8-15, are subject to this application.  
Additionally, the parcels subject to this application are all connected by a older, yet useful 
pedestrian sidewalk system providing convenient access to Main street with in one block. 

9



  
Staff has determined that the rezoning to residential is consistent with the existing 
development and use in the surrounding area.  
 
All parcels will be served by Town water and sewer.  
 
The owner proposes to fully renovate/rehabilitate all structures on the 14 lots with high 
end interior finishes and quality exterior renovations. All units will be used as market rate 
residential units only.   
 
Comprehensive Plan: 

 
The proposed use also comports with many of the essential findings, goals, and 
objectives of the Town of Altavista, Virginia 2045 Comprehensive Plan. Most notable 
among them: 
 
Goals and Objectives: Housing 
 

Goal: Access to safe, affordable, and varied housing options to meet the needs of all 
current and prospective town residents.  
 
Objective 1: Ensure an adequate supply of quality, diverse, affordable, and desirable 
housing options are available to meet the needs of current and future residents. 

 
Medium Density Residential, as defined by the Comprehensive Plan, are areas in our 
town now developed as primarily smaller lot single family homes. Land uses in these 
areas may include single family dwellings, townhouses, apartments, or condos and 
should be of high design quality. 
 
The future land use map for this site recommends Medium Density Residential adjacent 
to these parcels. After assessment of the current conditions and this proposal, 
designating these parcels as Medium Density Residential would elevate these 
parcels/structures to their highest and best use. 
 
Comments from Town and County Departments: 

Staff submitted a Memorandum to Town of Altavista Public Works Director, Town of 
Altavista Chief of Police, Town of Altavista Finance Director, Town of Altavista Assistant 
Town Manager, Campbell County Building Inspector, Campbell County Fire Marshall, and 
Superintendent of Campbell County Public Schools. 
 
Public Works commented that there is an existing water service line however it is 
undersized to meet the need of the proposed use and has been inactive for many years. 
Public Works has developed and submitted a plan to the applicants/owners which will 
meet Town water and wastewater standards and will be used to inform future 
development conversations.  
 
Campbell County Fire Marshall commented that his office will comment at final site plan 
approval level. 

10



 
Campbell County Buidling Official had no comments and was glad to see these homes 
put to good use. 
 
Dr. Robert Johnson, Campbell County Schools Superintendent at the time of the 
aforementioned memorandum, noted the school system had capacity to absorb any 
increase from this housing development. 
 
There were additional comments received from the above referenced. 
 
Public Input: 
 
As of the date of this report, staff has received one in-person visit from an Altavista Town 
Citizen in opposition to this proposal.  
 
Mr. Thomas Rosak, investor-owner of 421 Novelty St, stated he was opposed to this 
request because he did not want his property re-zoned from Industrial (M). Staff noted 
that his property was not subject to the re-zoning.  He further stated that he then had no 
other comments or concerns.  
 
Budget Impact: 
 
Additional revenue will be collected through real estate and personal property taxes, as 
well as water and sewer fees.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission make a recommendation to Town 
Council to approve the rezoning request. 
 
The proposed use is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan recommendation. It is also 
consistent with the development pattern for the area. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Application 
a. Owner Authorization 
b. Site Plan with Vicinity Map 
c. Payment Receipt 

2. Aerial Map 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Future Land Use Map 
5. Site photos (current conditions) 
6. Duplex renovation floor plans and interior renderings  

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



TOWN OF ALTAVISTA
PLANNING COMMISSION

September 5, 2023
AGENDA COVER SHEET

 

 AGENDA ITEM #: 7.1
Unfinished Business
Title: Student Commissioner Discussion
Staff Resource: Assistant Town Manager Matt Perkins
 

Action(s):

Discuss plan to recruit the next "Junior" Student Commissioner

Explanation:

Senior Commissioner Micah Andrews graduated with the 2023 senior class, and attended her last
Planning Commission meeting in June.  Ms. Regan Steele has moved from the Junior seat into the
Senior seat on the Commission; therefore, a new Junior Student Commissioner needs to be elected to
fill this vacancy.

Background:

The Altavista Planning Commission offers community/civic involvement to students through their
Student Commissioner Program.  Each year there is a Senior student and a Junior student chosen from
the Altavista Combined School to represent the youth of the Altavista community.

Funding Source(s):

Attachments:  (click item to open)

42


	Planning Commission Agenda
	2801 - Cover Page
	2801 - attachment. PC Meeting Minutes for 6.05.23
	2803 - Cover Page
	2803 - attachment. Staff Report to PC 9.05.23
	2802 - Cover Page

